Neptune Master °I6

by Jomes L. Smith

“Tap of the line in ‘thirty-rine", the Neptune Nodel 140548 ghown in Lhe
accompenying pictures was foremost in a fleld of seven Neptune motors a-
vailable in that vear. They ranged in size from the diminulive 1.2 H. ¥,

Junionr Single through 2, 4, 5, &, and 9 H.P. models but the F1AY poammands

attention from the first glance.

& powerful 20 cubvic inch opposed twin,
it weighs in at 9% pounds and is
claimed in the specs to attain a sur-
prising maximum of #8850 RFM under fa-
vorable conditions. Tnis is achieved
Lhrough the use of ball bearings on
the erankshaft, roller bearings on
Lhe connecting rods and.needle bear-
ings on the driveshafl. The friction
reducing system, however, is not
followed up in the gearcapge where
anly bronze bushings are used. The
motor utilizes the twoe oyele, three
port system and has nickle iron cy-
linders with detachable high compres-
aion heads., The bore of the cylinders
im 2 1/2 inchesa and the stroke of the
piagton ig 2 inches. The power head is
defini tely set up for high apead eper
ation and 16 H,P, ig claimed at 4oooRFM. The roda are drop-forged #leel

and the lightwelygh! aluminum alloy pistons have two rings apieco.

Effective cooling ig accomplighed by means of a circular positive cernlril-
ugal pump located at the top of the gearcase and keyed off the pinion
ahaft, An extra large air cooled muffler with rear cut-cut plate is (itted
and the propaller is a bronze Lhree blade 10" x 10", In oommon with many
of' the other Neptunes this motor features a stationary power head and
mourting brackel . The remainder, tneluding the driveshal't housing and 1low-
er unit, rotates with the tiller bar. This gives the operator a secure po-
Mtion while roping ovar a large motor,




The Master ‘16 made 1vs firsh appesrance as early as 1931 and waz con-
tinued for nver a decade with the lagt model heing marketed in 1941, Tn
the model desigrnation the suflix "A° was used lor the Neptune, "B° rop
the Buncie and ho suffix for the branded-sut Motorgo modal which appear-
ed in at least one year - 1934, This meant that during the 11 year pericd
the motor may have boen sold bearing any of the names Neptune, Muncie or
Motorge. All of the motors were rope gtart and the sample wmotor 1s e-
guinped with & magneto made by the Wico Electric Company of Springfield,

Yassachuzoetta.

This engine was acquired only recantly and in gpite of its age it is in
practically mint condition. The two gallon tank is polished and has no
decnl of any type; although, the Neptune identilfication with model and
serial number appears permanently on the starting pulley. The mag plate
has a wide range of advance and retard positions and isg conveniently
steadled with & ratchet device to reduce slippage. The model MS4TE
Tillotsorn carb is secured to an exterior manifold intake pipe., which in
turn is bolted directly to the cylinders in the manner of the early large
Evinrude twing. There ig a handy motorcycle type twigt grip throtile on
the stearing hamdle with a4 Bowden wire comnector to the carv. A small ac-
coszory coll apring assists in returning the threttle to slow spoeed.

Master '16's appear 10 be ascarce. It was unfortunate that the engine wasz
produeced during the last years of the Depreasion and may have been turned
oul in 1imited numbers relative 1o the smaller wizes. Prospective buyers
ol tneo motor class may have turned to zuch popular makes as Johnaon,
Evinrude or Fito gince the price tag was B180.%5 - a gligeable sum during
the thirties. It would be most interesting te know the total munber of
them made. 1 would be glad to hear {rom any mambers having a Master '16°
or knowing of one and in this way some sort of index of scarclty could be
extabilighed.

Tae following article entitled "AUCTIONEER'S GAVEL to SOUND END for
PLANT" appearad in The Muncie Star, Monday, May 14, 1973. It was wrilten
ty Wiley W. Spurgeon Jr., grandson of Dr. Wm., A. Spurgeon, a former pred-
jdent of the Muncie Gear Works. Mr. Spurgeon, who was an officer of
¥urcie Gear during its trannitional period in 1969, is presently editor
of The Muncie Star and 1t ig through his kindness and co-operation thal
wie receive ohis Information,

"f 5 year-long chapter in the industrial history of Muncie is
soheduled to end Thuraday, Lo the accompaniment of an auction-

ger's gavel .

Geginning at 10:00 A.M., the rewmaining assats of the‘f@rmcr
Munciae Cear Works Ine. will be s0ld at a public auction al the
ald Muncle Gear plani, 700 E. Wysor 8t.

The firal hammer of the gavel will signal the end of a firm
whose products included everything from milltary hardwara to
deep freezes, whose enginsers developed such items as an early
mini-bike (never marketed but prototype built in 1946}, and
whose lawyers successfully defended patent litigation brought
against the firm in the 1930'2 by ancther cutboard motor manu-
factuter, and In the lamdmark case volded some of that com-

pany'a patents,

Tha WMunelo Gear bullding and its contents were acquired earlier
this year by the Park. lorp., a West Virginia firm. That iz the
corporation whieh arranged Thursday's sale.

Phe name of Muncle Gear Worke dates to 19i0, whern a corporation
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by that name was formed to take over a two-year-old company
with the fascinating name of Muricie High Wheel Auto Parim Co.

The High Wheel firm was oneg of many which sprouted up through-
out the nation and especially in the industrial Midweat - in
the infant days of the automobile industry. It supplied com-
ponenta to some of the many, equally small manufacturers of
horselesn carriages. The tmpact of the automobile on the econo-
gy of Indlana itself can be Jjudged from the fact that perhaps
as many as 100 differently named automobiles were manufactured
in the state at such places as Albany, Muncie, New Cantly and
Union Clty in addition to Indianapolis, Xokomo and South Bend.

Romantic name notwithstending, The Muncie High Wheel Auto Parts
Co. did not laz2t long. In 1910 the Muncle Gear Works wae organ-
ized with o capitalization of $250,000, a sizeable sum in those
pre-fedesral-income tax days. Its firgt president was H.L. Warner
pnd he was succeeded by T.W. Narner. Both are ¥en whose names
are perpotuanted in the automotive industry by way of the Warner
Gear Divigion of Borg-Warner Corp. and Warner Machine Products,
a subsidinry of Egsex International.

Within a faw yezrs in the tsens, Muncle Gear Works was buslly
turning out clutches and transmissions for the automotive mar-
ket, and ag the Warner's cothar busingsas interests demanded more
of their time they were succeeded in the Muncie Gear president’s
chair by Dr. Willlam A. Spurgeon, a Munclo physiclian then in nis
late $0°'s who subsequontly retired from the active practice of
medicine to bocome rn manufacturar.

By the sarly 1620's, Xenneth A. Spurgeon, son of the president,
was operating the company ag ita generanl manager and ho subze-

qggntly became its presldent, a poat he held until his death in
1 ‘?4

The autcmotive parts business wag beginning to change in the
1920 but Muncie Gear transmissions continued to be wldely sold,
with custtomers including International Trucks and the Ford Motor
Company, which used the Muncie product in itz Model T trucks. A
Mid 1920°s higtorical account reports that Muncie Gear ant that
time employed 150 peopla.

For tho firat 25 or ao years of iis varled corporate exlastences,
Munclie Gear occupled n facility of about 25,000 square feet fac-
ing Vine Street, whlch extended just west of the Chesapeake and
Onic Rallroad passenger station.

Stock in the thriving company wag mold to the pudblic in the
1920y and control won acquired by Chicago interests, Diminish-
ment of 1he auto parts morket In the late 1920'8 followad by
the 1929 piock market crash and the depresaion which followed
led 1o 8 reorganization in which control was again gained by
Zr. W.A. Spurgeon. He in turn, aventually seold hisz interest to
his gsans Kenneth, William Chase and Wiley William. The lntier
two woro oxecutivesn of the firm at the time of thelr douths in
1068 and Lo54,

The firm having seen lts automotive parts market disappear, and
raorganised under the name of Muncie Gear Works Inc., ambarked
on a program of manufacturing that has few parallels in Muncie
history, with employment ranging from highs of 700 during World
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War 11, the early 1950'sz, and even as recent as 1969, Lo lows
af lans than 50 in the late 195G°s.,

Amonz products developed, experimented with and manufactured in
varying amounts by Muncle Gear belween the 193075 zrd its demlose
WETD

- & full line of cutbeard mctors wsing from time to time, the
Dlind namee of “Neptune", "Skipper", "Msgn*w lite™, and "Muncls"
as well as cutboards manufactured for such distributors ag JSears
Ruebuck and Co. and Mentgomery Ward,
- Pranasmissions for catutc diggers.
- dutomatic coal stokers which were distributed world-wide unde:
the brand name “Master”, as well 23 s0ld ta gueh wholesalers as
the Crane o,
- One of the first commercially-successful heat pumpsz, 3 device
in wnhich heat is taken from the ground and used o hesal bulld-
ings in the winter, and whers through use ol a reversge proceds
vuildings are cooled in the summer.
- &z an offshoot of the heat pumps 3 fuil line of alir concition-
ars Tor residential and conmercial use.
. One of the Tirst commercial deep Treeze units, only a fow of
wnich wore manufactured becauvse of the crsel of World War 11,
- Power lawn mowsrs.
- Parts for the 1ll-fated Muncie Oyroplane.

During Woerld War 1L, the Nuncie Gear pldlg wan the firat te cor-
vert locally inte defense products and in the years 1ah0-4n, i1
turnod out 37-millimeter gun carriages, aircraft parts, and out-
board drive for barges and landing crafts thatl eventually led To
the development of the irboard-outboard stern driwe that is pop-
ular with todays® boaters, and rocket comporents. To do this, 1t
expanden into ffe cld Aladdin Lamp plan? at 16th and Hackley and
The RFepublic Steel plant at 20th and Monroe.

The firm barely bhad time to crank up the stoker, outboard and
heat pump producticn after World War 11 when the Korearn conflict
fgrced the ocuthoard motors inte a back seat nozition and rocket

ctors became the prime proedunt of the Muneie plart., Stoker pro-

miion waz phnazed oul baeause of the diminishing market. (Yewer
buil&ings were being heated by coal). Quiboard production was
zut back, moved to a plant or Eagt Willard Street which subge-
quently burtied, and then moved to Cordele, Georgila in 1936, The
heat pump and air conditioner busingss was first moved to a
rlant at 18th and Hackley Streets zand then also relocsted in
Geargia.

Muncie Gears last periaod of big employment and producticon came
i the last half of the 1960's when local emplaynpnt Jumped fraom
about £35 {mainly turning out Muncie 18 paris) to soms 300 - all
of whom were bullding rocket parss for the Depariment of the
Army fior upe in Southeast Aszia.

The Georgla operation involving outboards and alr conditlaons
grew at a steady pace and was employing some 5C peornle by mid-
1969,

It waz anpnounced in June, 1969 that all of the stock in Munecle
Jear Works lnc. had been purchased by Applised Levicas Uorp.,
Sollege Point, New York,

4lthough W.A. Spurgeon {scn of Kenneth A. Spurgeon) and Wiley

boy



Spurgeon Jr. remained with ¥uncie Gear during a tramsitional
period, the New York Tirm took over active aanagemsnt scen afier,
The outbeard motor business was moved back to Muncie in 1970 but
was never made operational here, and in 1972 it was sold to

E. Fay Adams, a former ¥uncie Gear employee who now is manufac-
turing “Mighty Wite" outheoards at a Florida site.

Applied alse mowved the alr conditioner facility from Cordele to
Atlarnta in 1671 and sooen after that =old it to a group of
Cordele husinesamen headed by Silas EBrown, a former Ridgeville
man whe had managed the Cordele plamt for Muncie Gear. That
group moved it bapk to Cordele where.it remains in business.

When Army contracts for rocket parts were not renewed in early
1972 Applied Deviees shut the Muncie plant down except for a
small caretaker force and the 100,000 square Teet facillty has
bearn i1dle since then,

According to advertisements for the auction sale, the building
itself which was first enlarged to some 65,000 square feet in
the mid 1930°'s, with the advenl of the ztoker business, and then
expariied to cover most all of the rest of the available land in
the area in 1540, will not be offered for sale Thursday. Tark,
the present owner, has not indicated itz plans for the structure

which 1t purchased less than fiwve months ago™.

Mr. E. Ray Abrams had been chiefl engineer with the former company and af-
ter acquiring the Qutboard Tdvision, he called it Termar Inc. and located
it at Lehigh Acres, Florida. During the summer of 1974, Mr. Abrams dis-
posed of the cutboard concern to Mr. W. J. Hathai of the Emery Advertis-
ing Corp. with head offige at Towson, Maryland. Mr. Abrams consented

to =tay on as an employee for five years but has recently quit the com-
pany. The plant continues to cperate at Lehigh Acres and groduces the
Camilisr "Mighty ¥ita".
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